
 
IMLAY CITY 

DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
150 N. MAIN STREET 

IMLAY CITY, MI 48444 
                  

REGULAR MEETING SEPTEMBER 9, 2024 
5:35 P.M. 

 
Walter Bargen, Chair Justin Shattuck, Board Member  
Neil Docherty, Vice Chair  Steve Robbins, Board Member 
Kim Jorgensen, Secretary Jessica Montoya, Board Member 
Stu Davis, Treasurer Joi Kempf, Mayor   
   

 

A G E N D A 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
3. ROLL CALL 
4. CONSENT AGENDA – (pgs 3-14) 
  AGENDA; MEETING MINUTES: Regular meeting August 12, 2024 

  FINANCIAL REPORTS – through August 31, 2024 
DDA Expenditure Report, Check Register Report  
DDA Credit Card Statement; Balance Sheet; City Allocated Expense Report 

5. CORRESPONDENCE – (none) 
6. SPECIAL PRESENTATION (as needed) 
7. COMMITTEE REPORTS (as needed) 

A. City Services Negotiating Committee  
B. 338 Third Street Negotiating  

 

8. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
 

9. UNFINISHED BUSINESS:  
A. None 
 

10. NEW BUSINESS: 
A. Façade Grant Application – Mette Financial 301 E. Third Street  (pgs 15-22) 
B. Officer Elections (pgs 23-24) 
C. I AM Imlay City Project Update (pgs 25-26) 
D. Merchant Trick or Treating (pgs 27-32) 
E. WinterFest Special Event Permit (pgs 33-39) 
F. 2024 Summer Concert Report (pgs 41-55) 
 

11. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT (pgs 57-63) 
12. CLOSED SESSION – Convened For Property Acquisition 
13. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
14. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 
15. ADJOURNMENT 

 
Respectfully Submitted by: Christine Malzahn, DDA Executive Director                                                                 Posted September 5, 2024 
NEXT REGULAR MEETING: October 14, 2024 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALY BLANK 

 

 

2



   

 

 

Consent Agenda 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

DATE: September 9, 2024 

TO:  DDA Board Members 

FROM: Christine Malzahn, DDA Executive Director 

 

Items Attached:  
a. Meeting Agenda 
b. Meeting Minutes  

• August 12th Regular Session 
• August 12th Closed Session (provided at meeting) 

c. Financial Reports – Ending August 31, 2024 
• DDA Expenditure Report = $51,559.43 
• Check Register Report = $44,019.58 
• DDA Credit Card Statement  
• Balance Sheet = $$224,539.95 

d. Spreadsheet of FY 2023-24 monthly City administrative transfers –  
• August Totals $6,503.26 

  
 

Action Needed: Pass the motion(s) as recommended or amended per board discussion. 

 
Recommendation:   Motion to approve the consent agenda items as presented. 

 

 

3



IMLAY CITY 
DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

 
Regular Meeting  

August 12, 2024 
MEETING MINUTES 

 
A regular meeting of the Downtown Development Authority was held on Monday, August 12, 2024, at Imlay City 
Hall, 150 North Main Street, Imlay City MI 48444. 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
Chair Walt Bargen called the meeting to order at 5:35 pm 

 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
3. ROLL CALL – Director Malzahn called the roll. 

Present: Kim Jorgensen, Steve Robbins, Justin Shattuck, Jessica Montoya, Mayor Joi Kempf, Walter Bargen 
           Absent: Neil Docherty (excused), Stu Davis (excused) 
           Quorum Present 

 
4. CORRESPONDENCE – none 

 

5. SPECIAL PRESENTATION – none 
 

6. COMMITTEE REPORTS 
City Services Negotiating Committee – Chair Bargen acknowledged an email communication from City 
Manager Horton. 
338 Third Street Negotiating Committee – Director Malzahn reported that the committee met earlier 
in the day and recommended using the closed session agenda item later in the meeting to discuss 
further. 
 

7. CONSENT AGENDA 
 MOTION by Shattuck, supported by Jorgensen to approve the consent agenda items as presented including: 

 Meeting agenda; Regular meeting July 8, 2024; Information Meeting July 8, 2024; Special Meeting July 
22, 2024; FINANCIAL REPORTS – through July 31, 2024; DDA Expenditure Report, Check Register Report  
DDA Credit Card Statement; Balance Sheet; City Allocated Expense Report 

 All in Favor 6 / Nays 0 - MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

8. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION – none 
 
9. UNFINISHED BUSINESS – none  

 
10. NEW BUSINESS 

 

A. Shop, Dine Explore, Enjoy Street Banners 
Director Malzahn presented her designs, production estimates and recommended the creation of 
30 new banners to be installed in the CBD.  The banners will be created for generic uses to enhance 
the downtown streetscape.  The banners will be used to replace the current hometown hero 
display and will be displayed for a 8-week timeframe. 

MOTION by Robbins, supported by Shattuck to approve the purchase of 30 trivia banners for installation 
along Third Street and Almont Avenue from The Print Shop in the amount of $1525.00 

4



 Roll Call:  AYES –Robbins, Shattuck, Jorgensen, Montoya, Kempf, Bargen 
                  NAYS – none 
 MOTION CARRIED 6/0 

 
B. Fire Hall Improvements 

Director Malzahn presented several estimates for interior/ exterior power washing, concrete 
repairs and floor coating.  The Board discussed usage of the space for the market and other events 
and the need for some basic maintenance. 

MOTION by Robbins, supported Kempf to approve the maintenance work at 338 E. Third Street, including 
power washing and concrete repairs in the amount of not to exceed $6000. 

 Roll Call:  AYES – Robbins, Kempf, Montoya, Shattuck, Jorgensen, Bargen 
                  NAYS – none 
 MOTION CARRIED 6/0 
 

C.  Wayfinding Sign Repairs / Replacements 
The Board reviewed the original specs for the 2004 wayfinding sign project.  Discussion was had 
about the DDA’s responsibility to maintain that project or to remove the signs that are no longer 
viable.  There is an immediate need to repair the 5 directional signs that are faded and peeling 
along Van Dyke in MDOT ROW.  Those signs require specific materials to meet MDOT 
requirements.  Malzahn submitted an inventory/condition report showing the majority of 
pedestrian signs have started to show wear and will need to be addressed soon, the destination 
signs are still in general good condition. 

MOTION by Jorgensen, supported by Robbins to approve the sign repairs estimate as presented by Valley 
Sign Company in the amount of $16,057. 

 Roll Call:  AYES – Jorgensen, Robbins, Kempf, Montoya, Shattuck, Bargen 
                  NAYS – none 
 MOTION CARRIED 6/0 
 

D. Fall Décor Discussion and Budget Allocation 
Director Malzahn presented several concept designs for fall décor.  She recommended that 3-4 
select areas in the CBD be decorated for the season to keep costs down.  The Chamber of 
Commerce is paying forward their straw bales’ leftover from SummerFest, which Malzahn now has 
stored in the back of the fire hall.  Jorgensen recommended using White Feather Farms for 
mums/pumpkins etc. since they are the donors of the straw. 

MOTION by Jorgensen, supported by Kempf to approve a fall decoration budget – not to exceed $2500. 
 Roll Call:  AYES – Jorgensen, Kempf, Robbins, Montoya, Bargen 
                  NAYS – Shattuck 
 MOTION CARRIED 5/1 
 

 

11.  DIRECTORS REPORT 
Malzahn presented her written report in the meeting packet for July 2024.  In addition, Malzahn gave 
an update on the EV Charger grant, the bike rack project, market manager report, and took updates for 
the board member list. 
 

12. CLOSED SESSION  - for the purposes of property purchase consideration 
MOTION by Robbins, support by Jorgensen to enter closed session at 6:08 pm   
 All in Favor 6/ Nays 0 - MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY  
 
RE-ENTER REGULAR SESSION AT 6:50 PM 

5



 
MOTION by Shattuck, support by Robbins to proceed with negotiations between the DDA and City 
Manager to acquire the 3 city-owned parcels including the old fire hall, DPW and former sign shop.  
 All in Favor 6/ Nays 0 - MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY  
 

 

13. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION – none 
 
14. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS – none 
 
15.  ADJOURNMENT 

MOTION by Shattuck, supported by Robbins to adjourn the meeting at 6:58 pm 
  All in Favor 6 Ayes/Nays 0 - MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY  
 
 
Next Regular DDA Board meeting date: Monday, September 9, 2024, at 5:35 PM 
 
 
Respectfully submitted by: _________________________________________ 
                                     Christine Malzahn, DDA Executive Director 

DDA APPROVED:  
 

CITY COMMISSION APPROVED: 

6



7



8



9



10



11



(i)fnbo 

CITY OF IMLAY CITY 
Account number ending in 9672 
Transactions for billing cycle ending 08/23/24 

TRANSACTION DETAIL 

Tran sac ti on s 

Trans Date Post Date Reference Number Transaction Description Credits (CR) and 

-----------------------�------ --------
D
-
eb_l

t
_s _ / 

007�

0 . 

� 

07-31 55432864213206907279290 SQ *BOTANAS EL PAIZA IMLAY $100.70 V 

l'.lti'i,Y':t!l 11\4<? 705 00QtJ7?; (jXp CllY Ml 

55432864213206983948743 .'-\ AMAZON MKTPL*RV32Y68I1 
£{;3 36 V Amzn.com/bill WA

07-31 08-01
\.{

5432864213207047334011 AMAZON MKTPL"RF7IQ60Q2 

tt)\'lm.t,(5 ffrtii 
U,t �4<t] Q@DO '113 �bf)n.com/bill WA

08-07 08-07

Fees Charged 

Total Fees for this period 

85411174220023000164270 PAYMENT- THANK YOU 

HOBBY LOBBY #361 FO RT 
GRATIOT Ml 

Interest Charged 

$0.00 Interest Charge on Purchases 

Interest Charge on Cash Advances 

Interest Charge on Balance Transfers 

Total Interest for this Period 

$21.19 

$15.90 

$812.74 CR 

$92.78✓ 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

Charge Summary Your Annual Percentage Rate (APR) Is the annual Interest rate on your account (v) Variable rate (f) Fixed rate 

Annual Pe rcentage Special Offer or Eligible Balance Subject to Days Rate Used 
Rate (APR) Purchases APR Expiration Date Interest Rate 

Purchases 18.24% (v) 

Cash Advance 30.49% (v) 

2024 Total Year-to-Date 

Total Fees Charged in 2024 

Total Interest Charged in 2024 

Contact lnformati�n 

Contact us on line 
card.fnbo.com 

NA 

NA 

$0.00 

$0.00 

Talk To Us 
800-81!H249 

$495.28 

$0.00 

We accept calls made through 
relay services (dial 711) 

30 

30 

Mail Payments To 
FNBO 

P.O .  B ox 2818 
Omaha, NE 68103-2818 

Interest Charge 

$0.00 

$0.00 

12



13



City Adm
inistrative Applied Charges

2023-2024 Budget
$30,000.00

$35,000.00
324,500.00

M
onth

Electricity               Street 
Lam

ps
Copier                    G

L 
M

isc.  #956.000

O
ffice Supplies      

N
on-DDA 

Purchased
Phones          

G
L# 853.000    

City G
rounds 

M
aintenance    
G

L M
isc.  

#956.000
O

ther
Adm

inistrative 
Transfer

 Legal Services 
G

L# 826.000 

Com
puter 

Services     G
L# 

818.000

O
ld Fire H

all 
Consum

ers 
Energy

W
ater Usage for 
dow

ntow
n 

irrigation

 M
M

L Liability 
Insurance G

L# 
830.000 

M
onthly Totals

Jul-23
$2,665.23

$50.56
$48.55

$840.00
$35,000.00

$38,604.34
Aug-23

$2,650.84
$50.24

$119.02
$63.46

$840.00
$3,723.56

Sep-23
$2,703.44

$26.95
$81.10

$840.00
$6.93

$3,658.42
O

ct-23
$2,801.50

$63.38
$7.36

$840.00
$1,073.34

$4,785.58
N

ov-23
$2,818.39

$207.29
$44.64

$162.47
$3,232.79

Dec-23
$3,395.95

$70.88
$22.51

$68.34
$70.40

$3,628.08
Jan-24

$4,022.87
$55.94

$31.32
$113.05

$4,223.18
Feb-24

$2,927.46
$65.76

$71.27
$114.60

$3,179.09
M

ar-24
$2,810.06

$97.35
$16.39

$55.79
$2,979.59

Apr-24
$4,441.57

$26.95
$57.04

$55.33
$806.40

$189.56
$5,576.85

M
ay-24

$4,145.07
$80.91

$46.54
$18.86

$806.40
$375.00

$5,472.78
Jun-24

$4,013.79
$48.77

$11.90
$50.00

$806.40
480.00

$                 
$187.50

$16.00
$5,614.36

$43,396.10
$909.64

$469.18
$799.79

$6,585.60
$1,715.23

$35,000.00
480.00

$                 
$187.50

$16.00
$89,355.54

2024-2025 Budget
$30,000.00

$4,000.00
$1,200.00

$4,000.00
$35,000.00

200.00
$              

324,500.00
Jul-24

$3,999.93
$64.66

$9.43
$806.40

$13.30
$4,192.41

$9,086.13
Aug-24

$4,243.14
$70.00

$177.87
$806.40

30.00
$                    

200.95
974.90

$              

14



   

 

 

AGENDA ITEM NB 10a. 301 E. Third Street – Mette Financial 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

DATE: September 9, 2024 

TO:  DDA Board Members 

FROM: Christine Malzahn, DDA Executive Director 

 

Background: The DDA office received a façade/sign grant application from Rob Mette on 
August 26, 2024 requesting funding to help pay for new signage at his office.  
Note that the submission received only includes one quote (although it 
would be the preferred local vendor).  I did inform the applicant that the 
application requires a minimum of two estimates. 

 

Items Attached: Façade Grant Application 
 
 

Action Needed: Pass the motion(s) as recommended or amended per board discussion. 

 

Recommendation: Motion to approve the sign grant application in the amount of $350.00 as 
submitted 

 

15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



   

 

 

AGENDA ITEM NB 10b. Officer Elections 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

DATE: September 9, 2024 

TO:  DDA Board Members 

FROM: Christine Malzahn, DDA Executive Director 

 

Background: Per the 2024 adopted DDA By-laws section 2.2 the officers of the 
Authority shall be elected in July of each year by the members of the 
Board. Each officer shall serve for one year or until his or her successor 
shall take office. Vacancies in office shall be filled by election of the 
Board. 

 

 

Items Attached: 2024 DDA Bylaw Excerpt 
 
 

Action Needed: Pass the motion(s) as recommended or amended per board discussion. 

 

 

23



ARTICLE II 
OFFICERS 

Section 2.1 – OFFICERS 
The officers of the Authority shall consist of a chairperson, vice chairperson, secretary and treasurer and 
director if appointed. 

Section 2.2 – ANNUAL ELECTION 
The officers of the Authority shall be elected in July of each year by the members of the Board. Each 
officer shall serve for one year or until his or her successor shall take office. Vacancies in office shall be 
filled by election of the Board. 

Section 2.3 – DUTIES OF CHAIR 
The chairperson shall preside at all meetings of the Board and shall perform such other duties as they are 
assigned to him or her by the Board. 

Section 2.4 – DUTIES OF VICE CHAIR 
The vice chairperson shall preside whenever the chairperson is unavailable. If neither the chairperson nor 
the vice chairperson is available to preside at a meeting, a temporary presiding officer shall be elected for 
that meeting. 

Section 2.5 – DUTIES OF SECRETARY 
The Board may employ and fix the compensation of a secretary, who shall maintain custody of the official 
seal and records, books, documents, or other papers not required to be maintained by the treasurer. The 
secretary shall attend meetings of the Board and keep a record of the proceedings and shall perform such 
other duties delegated by the Board. 

Section 2.6 – DUTIES OF TREASURER 
The treasurer of the City of Imlay City will be asked to serve as the DDA treasurer. They shall keep the 
financial records of the Authority and who, together with the Director, if any, shall approve all accounts 
payable vouchers for the expenditure of funds of the Authority. The treasurer shall perform such other 
duties as may be delegated to him or her by the Board and shall furnish bond in an amount prescribed by 
the City of Imlay City Charter. 

Section 2.7 – EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 
The Board may employ and fix the compensation of a director, subject to the approval of the City of Imlay 
City Commission. The director shall serve at the pleasure of the board. A member of the Board is not 
eligible to hold the position of director. Before entering upon the duties of the office, the director shall 
take and subscribe to the constitutional oath and furnish bond by posting a bond in the amount of $5,000 
payable to the Authority for the use and benefit of the Authority, approved by the Board, and filed with 
the Clerk of the City of Imlay City, if not covered by the City’s Municipal Insurance policy. The premium on 
the bond shall be considered an operating expense of the Authority, payable from funds available to the 
Authority for the expense of operation. The director shall be the chief executive officer of the Authority. 
Subject to the approval of the Board, the director shall supervise and be responsible for the preparation of 
plans and the performance of the functions of the authority in the manner authorized by Public Act No. 
197 of 1975. The director shall attend the meetings of the Board and shall render to the Board and the 
governing body a regular report covering the activities and financial condition of the Authority. If the 
director is absent or disabled, the Board may designate a qualified person as acting director to perform 
the duties of the office, the acting director shall take and subscribe to the constitutional oath and furnish a 
bond as required by the director. The director shall furnish the Board with information or reports 
governing the operations of the Authority, as the Board requires. 

24



   

 

 

AGENDA ITEM NB 10c. I AM Imlay City Storytelling Project  
______________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

DATE: September 9, 2024 

TO:  DDA Board Members 

FROM: Christine Malzahn, DDA Executive Director 

 

Background: Director Malzahn has recorded 26 storyteller videos and has approved 15 
banners to date.  The target goal was 40 with an anticipated release date of 
October 12, 2024.  Malzahn is seeking input and direction from the Board on 
how they wish to complete this project. 

 

Items Attached: Storyteller Participant List 
 
 

Action Needed: Pass the motion(s) as recommended or amended per board discussion. 

 

Recommendation: Motion to set release date for ___________________. 
 

25



Declined
Signed O

n
N

am
e

N
om

inated by
em

ail 
Living

Deceased
Contribution

quote subm
itted

photo subm
X

John Lengem
ann

johnl@
m

lm
-law

.net
X

Current Buisness O
w

ner
X

X
X

Collin G
iles

X
Ted Sadler

X
X

X
X

Ayleen H
ernandez

ayleen36hernandez@
gm

ail.com
X

H
igh School Artist

X
G

reg Irw
in

girw
in@

icschools.us
X

IC Art Teacher
X

X
Vlasic / Deb H

olt
debra.holt@

conagra.com
X

Business
X

Viola Pisariuk
X

Lifelong Resident (Leah's G
randm

other)
X

M
arilyn Sw

ihart
bsw

ihart1904@
charter.net

X
Com

m
unity Author

X
X

Ruth Krake
Beth VanDyk

Leah M
ills

Tom
 Schultz

Leah M
ills

John M
ulder

Beth VanDyk
M

aria Brow
n

Beth VanDyk
X

Lee Super
Leah M

ills
X

X
X

Randy Jorgensen
rjorgensen@

pageone-inc.com
X

Publisher
X

X
Rene Vandenberg

Randy Jorgensen
X

Stu Cam
ron

Randy Jorgensen
X

School Superintendent
X

X
Bob M

uir
Randy Jorgensen

Funeral H
om

e
G

ary W
alton

Randy Jorgensen
Local Farm

er
X

Chester M
arco

Randy Jorgensen
G

B Packers Player
N

ancy Schiller / Dr. G
len Sm

ith
Randy Jorgensen

Local Physcian
X

Tim
 M

ooney
April Peterson

Local Resident of Palm
er H

ouX
X

X
J im

 Sillers
em

u6760@
yahoo.com

X
Rotarian / Com

m
unity Philan

X
X

X
B arbara Yockey

X
Local Business O

w
ner

X
X

Ian Kem
pf

Joi Kem
pf

Eastern M
I Fair

X
W

alt Bargen
DDA Chairm

an
X

Cynthia Strobel
X

Kirsten Shattuck
X

Local Business O
w

ner
X

X
X

H
ispanic Services Center

Sw
eet Treats

Yolanda H
ernandez

X
Trish Dennis

X
Indigo Lavender Farm

s
X

X
Tim

 Dudley
X

X
Stu Davis

X
X

Bob Conrad
X

X
X

X
Yaqui (Jackie) Soria

Stu Cam
eron

X
X

X
X

Anakin M
ills

X
X

Alexa Lengem
ann

Stu Cam
eron

X
X

Denise Kovacik
X

X
X

Javier Sanchez
X

X
Dr. G

eorge Jones
H

istorical M
useum

x
1st Doctor in Im

lay City
X

X
John Borland Sr.

H
istorical M

useum
X

Pioneer Fam
ily

X
Bob Burm

an
H

istorical M
useum

X
Early 1900's Race Car Driver

X
X

Charles M
arshall

H
istorical M

useum
X

Pioneer Fam
ily Business

X
Charles Palm

er
H

istorical M
useum

X
Founder Im

lay City
X

X
Lee W

eyer
H

istorical M
useum

X
N

at League Um
pire 1980's

X
X

Dorothy Leith
Lynn N

olin
X

1st W
om

an Doctor in Lapeer County
X

Ruth Knight
Lynn N

olin
X

G
irl Scout - Progressive Fem

ale Leader
G

ladys Lancaster
Lynn N

olin
X

1st W
om

en Pharm
acist

X
G

ene Coscarelli
Justin Shattuck

X

X
Im

lay City Rosies
Bette Kanw

ard
X

X
Laura Lopez

X
Spanish Teacher

Vlassic ?
Deb H

olt

26

mailto:johnl@mlm-law.net
mailto:ayleen36hernandez@gmail.com
mailto:girwin@icschools.us
mailto:debra.holt@conagra.com
mailto:bswihart1904@charter.net
mailto:rjorgensen@pageone-inc.com
mailto:emu6760@yahoo.com


   

 

 

AGENDA ITEM NB 10d. Merchant Trick or Treating 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

DATE: September 9, 2024 

TO:  DDA Board Members 

FROM: Christine Malzahn, DDA Executive Director 

 

Background: Director Malzahn has met with the Chamber of Commerce promotions 
coordinator to plan for trick or treating downtown with a party in the 
farmers market from 11:00 am – 3:00 pm.  The party would feature a DJ for 
music, and would a include a costume contest, inflatable games and an 
inflatable corn maze.  Currently, the DDA has no budget line item for this 
event 

 

Items Attached: Merchant Trick or Treating Poster 
 
 

Action Needed: Pass the motion(s) as recommended or amended per board discussion. 

 

Recommendation: Motion to use $1,000 of the funds previously approved for fall décor for this 
fall event. 

 

27



Saturday October 26th 
Downtown Trick or Treating 11:00 am -1:00 pm
Market Party 11:00 am - 3:00 pm

www.icdda.com

DJ Dance
Party
costume
contest
inflatable
games
inflatable
corn maze

TRICK
OR TREAT &
HALLOWEEN PARTY 

IMLAY CITY MERCHANT’S

IN THE MARKET

www.imlaycitychamberofcommerce.orgOR

28

https://imlaycitychamberofcommerce.org/


29



30



31



32



   

 

 

AGENDA ITEM NB 10f. WinterFest Special Event Permit 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

DATE: September 9, 2024 

TO:  DDA Board Members 

FROM: Christine Malzahn, DDA Executive Director 

 

Background: Director Malzahn has met with the Chamber of Commerce promotions 
coordinator to plan for the 2024 WinterFest Event.  The event will be held on 
December 7, 2024 from 10am – 7 pm, and will include a Kringle Market, 
Lunch with Santa, Kids Crafts, Live Nativity, Lighted Parade, Tree Lighting, 
Visit with Santa and more. 

 

Items Attached: Save The Date Announcement 
 Special Event Permit Application 
 
 

Action Needed: Pass the motion(s) as recommended or amended per board discussion. 

 

Recommendation: Motion to submit the Special Event Permit to City Commission as presented 
 

33



Free Family FunFree Family Fun

10       7am pmDec 7th
The

Downtown Imlay City
event details

save the date!

34



35



36



37



38



39



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALY BLANK 

 

 

40



   

 

 

AGENDA ITEM NB 10f. 2024 Summer Concert Report 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

DATE: September 9, 2024 

TO:  DDA Board Members 

FROM: Christine Malzahn, DDA Executive Director 

 

Background: Director Malzahn has completed the required reporting for the MACC grant.  
The reporting provides a complete summary for this DDA-funded event. 

 

Items Attached: MACC Grant Report 
 Event Spreadsheet 
 
 

Action Needed: Pass the motion(s) as recommended or amended per board discussion. 

 

Recommendation: Motion to accept the MACC Grant report as submitted. 
 

41



Final Report for 24MG9458

General Information

Organization

Contact

Due Date: 09/30/2024

Grant Type: Minigrants Arts Project

Organization Name: IMLAY CITY DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
Other Name:
Address: 150 N. Main Street
City: Imlay City
State: MI
Zip Code: 48444
County: Lapeer

Federal ID: 38-600-7180
DUNS #:

Telephone: (810) 724-2135
Website (URL): icdda.com

Status: 08 Government - Municipal
Discipline: 02 Music
Institution: 99 None of the Above

Authorizing Official: Walter Bargen
Authorizing Official Title: Board Chairman
Authorizing Official Email: Walter.bargen@choiceone.com

Final Report for 24MG9458

 

Page 1 of 13

42



Report Details

Project

Project Director: Christine Malzahn
Title: DDA Executive Director
Address: 150 N. Main Street
City: Imlay City
State: MI
Zipcode: 48444
Business Phone: (810) 724-2135
Other Phone: 
Fax: 
Email: ddadirector@imlaycity.org

The Grant Agreement with MACC requires the final reporting of grant activities. Review your
agreement for specific grant reporting requirements. The grant report is used by the Council for
grant agreement monitoring, project evaluation and research. Final grant payment will not be
processed until the required grant report is officially received and approved. The content of the
grant report should reflect all programmatic and financial activities of the funded project, from
beginning to end, in accordance with your grant agreement.

Please submit your final report by the due date as stipulated in your grant agreement.

If the report is not completed and submitted by the due date, you may be asked to return funds.
Also, until the report is received, future awards by the Michigan Arts & Culture Council will not be
processed.

If you have questions, please contact Council staff at 517-241-4011.

Once the final report is completed and saved, click “Submit”. After clicking “Submit” the Final
Report Certification will be sent to the Project Director and Authorizing Official via DocuSign
email. The final report is not complete until the Final Report Certification has been signed and
uploaded by both individuals. The Project Director will receive an email from mcaca@michigan.org
as confirmation of the submission.

Final Report for 24MG9458

 

Page 2 of 13

43

mailto:mcaca@michigan.org


Participation Summary

Grant Number: 24MG9458

Award Amount: $4,000
Start Date: 10/01/2023
End Date: 09/30/2024

Project Primary Discipline: Music
Type of Activity: Concert/performance/reading

Project Description: Summer Concerts in the Park Series held annually in downtown Imlay City. These
concerts are something the community looks forward to every summer. Since we are a low to moderate
income community, many citizens do not have an opportunity for cultural or art. This is one of our efforts
that helps to bring the cultural experience to our community. It is held on Tuesday evenings in Lamb
Steele Park. A typical concert attendance ranges from 60-250 people each week. We vary the type of
music and performance to allow for a wide range of different musical artistic expressions.

Project Primary Counties: St Clair;Lapeer;Sanilac
 

Total number of Michigan artists directly involved:

Enter the number of Michigan artists directly involved in providing artistic services for your project.

81

Total paid to Michigan artists:

Enter the amount paid to Michigan artists directly involved in providing artistic services for your project.

$9,765

Final Report for 24MG9458

 

Page 3 of 13

44



Total number of artists directly involved:

Enter the total number of artists directly involved in providing artistic services for your project. This total
number should include Michigan artists.”

81

Total paid to artists:

Enter the total amount to be paid to artists directly involved in providing artistic services specifically
identified with the award (this total must include the amount paid to Michigan artists).

As a reminder, the total number of Michigan artists participating as well as total paid to Michigan artists can
be equal or be less than the total number of artists participating/total paid to artists, but it cannot be greater
than.

$9,765

Adults Engaged

Enter the number of adults who directly engaged with the arts, whether through attendance at arts events or
participation in arts learning or other types of activities in which people were directly involved with artists or
the arts. Do not count individuals primarily reached through TV, radio or cable broadcast, the Internet, or
other media. Include actual audience numbers based on paid/free admissions or seats filled. Avoid inflated
numbers. Participation through electronic media, including webinars or any other on-line experience, should
not be included. The distribution of literary material likewise should not be included.

875

Final Report for 24MG9458

 

Page 4 of 13

45



Youth Engaged

Enter the number of children/youth (0-18 years) who directly engaged with the arts, whether through
attendance at arts events or participation in arts learning or other types of activities in which people were
directly involved with artists or the arts. Do not count individuals reached through TV, radio or cable
broadcast, the Internet, or other media. Include actual audience numbers based on paid/free admissions or
seats filled. Avoid inflated numbers. Participation through electronic media, including webinars or any other
on-line experience, should not be included. The distribution of literary material likewise should not be
included.

140

Total number of new hires

Enter the number of full time employees/equivalents that will be hired by the applicant organization in the
past year. Do not include contract workers. A full time employee is defined as someone who works a
minimum of 35 hours a week and receives a W2* from the organization. A part time employee is defined as
someone who works less than 35 hours a week and receives a W2* from the organization. A contractual
worker would be someone who receives a 1099** from the organization.

1

Total number of employees

Enter the number of full time employees/equivalents for the applicant organization. Do not include contract
workers. A full time employee is defined as someone who works a minimum of 35 hours a week and
receives a W2* from the organization. A part time employee is defined as someone who works less than 35
hours a week and receives a W2* from the organization. A contractual worker would be someone who
receives a 1099** from the organization.

2

Population Benefited by Age

Select all categories that made up 25% or more of the population that directly benefited, excluding
broadcasts or online programming. DO NOT SELECT ALL BOXES.

Young Adults (19 - 24 years), Adults (25 - 64 years), Older Adults (65+ years)

Final Report for 24MG9458

 

Page 5 of 13

46



Financials

Revenue and Expense Report

Population Benefited by Race / Ethnicity

Select any of the categories that, by your best estimate, made up 25% or more of the population that directly
benefited from the award during the period of support. These responses should refer to populations directly
involved with the MACC Grant Project, rather than through broadcasts or online programming. DO NOT
SELECT ALL BOXES.

Hispanic/Latino, White

Population Benefited by Distinct Groups

Select any of the categories that, by your best estimate, made up 25% or more of the population that directly
benefited from the award during the period of support. These responses should refer to populations directly
involved with the MACC Grant Project, rather than through broadcasts or online programming. DO NOT
SELECT ALL BOXES.

Individuals with Disabilities, Individuals below the Poverty Line

Contract Status

Select option that best describes the current status.

Contract Completed: Met required grant match.

Council Award

$4,000

Expenses

Employee Expenses

Final Report for 24MG9458

 

Page 6 of 13

47



Type MACC Grant Funds Organization Funds In-Kind Support (if
allowable by program)

Total Employee
Expenses

Employees $0 $1,102 $0 $1,102

$0 $1,102 $0 $1,102

Non Employee Expenses

Expense MACC Grant Funds Organization Funds In-Kind Support (if
allowable by program)

Total Non-Employee
Costs

Artists Fees $4,000 $4,750 $0 $8,750

$4,000 $4,750 $0 $8,750

Additional Project Expenses

Expense MACC Grant Funds Organization Funds In-Kind Support (if
allowable by program)

Total Additional Project
Expenses

Advertising $0 $1,074 $0 $1,074

Music License Fees $0 $1,015 $0 $1,015

$0 $2,089 $0 $2,089

Other Expenses

Expense MACC Grant Funds Organization Funds In-Kind Support (if
allowable by program) Total Other Expenses

Food / Giveaways $0 $707 $0 $707

$0 $707 $0 $707

Expenses Totals

MACC Grant Funds Organization Funds In-Kind Support (if
allowable by program) Total

Employee Expenses $0 $1,102 $0 $1,102

Non Employee Costs $4,000 $4,750 $0 $8,750

Additional Project
Expenses $0 $2,089 $0 $2,089

Other Expenses $0 $707 $0 $707

Total Project
Expenses

$4,000 $8,648 $0 $12,648

 

Revenue

Final Report for 24MG9458

 

Page 7 of 13

48



Revenue - Earned
Revenue Earned Amount

Ticket sales/Admissions $0

Tuition $0

Contracted Services $0

Total Revenue Earned $0

Revenue - Unearned (Corporate, Foundation, Private Support)
Corporation Name Amount

Choice One Bank $500

$500

Foundation Name Amount

Private Support Amount

Private Donations $0

Unearned Corporate, Foundation, Private Support Amount

Total $500

Revenue - Unearned (Government Support - Federal, State, Local)
Federal - Government Support Amount

State - Government Support (do not include MACC grant) Amount

Local - Government Support Amount

Government Support Amount

Total $0

Revenue - Other Unearned Revenue (not listed above)
Other Unearned Revenue (not listed above) Amount

Other Unearned Revenue (not listed above) Amount

Total $0

Revenue Totals
Amount

In-Kind Revenue (added from expenses) $0

MACC Grant Award $4,000

Final Report for 24MG9458

 

Page 8 of 13

49



Questions & Attachments

Questions

Total Cash Match $500

Total Cash Revenue $4,500

Total Project Revenue $4,500

Once the final report is completed and saved, click “Submit”. After clicking “Submit” the Final Report
Certification will be sent to the Project Director and Authorizing Official via DocuSign email. The final
report is not complete until the Final Report Certification has been signed and uploaded by both
individuals. The Project Director will receive an email from macc@michigan.org as confirmation of the
submission.

Final Report for 24MG9458

 

Page 9 of 13

50

mailto:macc@michigan.org


Project Summary

Provide a summary of the project offered during the grant cycle. Be sure to include the artistic/cultural merit
and community impact of the project. (Max. 2,500 characters)

The Imlay City Downtown Development Authority (DDA) presented an eight-week concert series in Lamb
Steele Park, located in downtown Imlay City. The concerts were held on Tuesday evenings from 7-8:30
pm during the months of June, July and August. We worked diligently to bring quality performances from
professionals who are passionate about music and art and provide a true cultural experience to the
Imlay City community. This year’s performances offered a wide range of musical genres and family
entertainment. Our audiences enjoyed two cultural-themed nights (a Mariachi band and German Polka
band). We brought in a 19-piece orchestra to play "Big-Band" favorites, an Elvis impersonator, and a
group of 30 high-school-aged musicians to showcase their talents, an award winning Nashville country-
western artist and several classic rock cover bands . On the evening of July 30th, together with a classic
rock cover band, we hosted an Ice Cream Social offering free face-painting and a live mermaid
experience - the youth in attendance loved the event.

Imlay City, population 3,500, is located within the County of Lapeer where residents are severely
underserved in the areas of art and cultural affairs. Residents have little opportunity or exposure to arts
within the community as Imlay City does not have an art museum (Flint, 35 miles) or performance
theatre (Lapeer, 15 miles). Therefore, the Concert Series is extremely valuable, as it offers an opportunity
for the community to experience live music and engage in performances without having to travel any
lengthy distance, not to mention that these concerts are free for all to enjoy.

Final Report for 24MG9458

 

Page 10 of 13

51



Project Implementation

How the project was implemented, including timetable or schedule of activities, management, staff and
volunteer participation in the project. (Max. 2,500 characters)

Imlay City DDA Director, Christine Malzahn began planning and implementing the 2024 concert series in
October of 2023 with the press release announcing our MACC grant award. Subsequently, she followed
with vetting and contracting the artists for the upcoming summer’s performances. All 8 artists' contracts
were fully executed before the end of 2023. In March 2024 a schedule of events was released and
marketing materials were created.

The Imlay City DDA engaged in a wide array of marketing activities ensuring that both Imlay City
residents and the surrounding communities were made aware of the events occurring in the downtown.
Marketing materials included the production of 200 glossy 11x17 posters distributed at local businesses,
ten large 24"x36" corroplast sandwich board signs were displayed throughout downtown Imlay City.
Event dates were posted on community websites, calendars and digital message board signs. Weekly
advertisements were published in the Tri-City Times (a local paper of general circulation) announcing the
performers for each concert.

The DDA hired a summer intern to assist with marketing the concerts including updates to the DDA
website (www.icdda.com) and our social media pages (Facebook and Instagram - with presently over
8000 followers).

Project Success

Explain if the grant program was a success – provide examples of how you measured the success. (Max.
2,500 characters)

The program was a success this year measured by the increase in attendees. This year we saw a 50%
increase in attendance, last year we had 510 present over the 8-week concert series, while in 2024 we
had 1015 audience members over the same time frame. Stats were gathered through head counts and
monitoring the number of free giveways that were provided each week.

Final Report for 24MG9458

 

Page 11 of 13

52



Attachments

Certification

Project Challenge

What was the biggest obstacle or what would you have changed to ensure the project ran smoothly? (Max.
2,500 characters)

The biggest challenge was dealing with mother nature and the elements. Imlay City does not have an
pavilion or amphitheater complex to host concerts or events under any type of shelter, so dealing with
the heat, humidity, rain, and storms always provide a challenge. Luckily we had use of an unused old
firehall so that one of the concerts could be moved indoors for public safety due to incoming inclement
weather.

Supplemental Materials

Required attachments include photos of the program and any promotional materials that include the MACC
logo. Additional attachments at the discretion of the applicant.

2024_summer_concert_series_Grant_Announcement.png
886.4 KB - 09/04/2024 2:10 PM

Concerts_In_The_Park_2024.pdf
23.6 MB - 09/04/2024 2:06 PM

Grant_Award_Press_Release.docx
14.3 KB - 09/04/2024 2:57 PM

Total Files: 3

Final Report for 24MG9458

 

Page 12 of 13

53

https://macc.smartsimple.com/files/spool/1994451/34924763/80_1902700_34924763/2024_summer_concert_series_Grant_Announcement.png?fs=1
https://macc.smartsimple.com/files/spool/1994451/34924763/80_1902700_34924763/Concerts_In_The_Park_2024.pdf?fs=1
https://macc.smartsimple.com/files/spool/1994451/34924763/80_1902700_34924763/Grant_Award_Press_Release.docx?fs=1


Once you click "Submit," the Project Director will receive the Final Report Certification for signature via a DocuSign

email.

When the Project Director completes the DocuSign email, the Authorizing Official will receive the Final Report

Certification via a DocuSign email.

After the Authorizing Official completes the DocuSign email, the Final Report Certification will automatically be

uploaded in SmartSimple and the final report is submitted.

Note: The final report is NOT submitted until the Project Director and Authorizing Official complete the Final Report

Certification DocuSign email. MACC is not responsible for unsigned documents contributing to missed deadlines.

Signed Certification:

Final Report for 24MG9458

 

Page 13 of 13

54



Budget-Im
layCityDDA

2024 Sum
m

er Concert Series
2024 Budget = $12,000

Detail
Attendance

Expense
Artist Fees

N
otes

8-W
eek Series

O
perating Supplies (snacks/w

ater)
108

$            
Advertising

$1,073.50
Licensing - Sesac

581
$            

Licensing - ASCAP
434

$            
Em

ployee Expense
1,102

$         

June 18th
Sw

ing Shift O
rchestra

100
750

$           

June 25th
El Ballet Folklorico Estudiantil

110
2,000

$       

July 9th
Elvis

195
750

$           
Storm

s Anticipated - M
oved to Firehall

July 16th
Black M

ountain Sons
85

1,100
$       

July 30th 
Full Circle Project / Ice Cream

 Social
140

1,000
$       

Face Painter
300

$           
Pixey The M

erm
aid

150
$           

Ice Cream
 Treats

600
$            

August 10th - Sum
m

er Fest
3rd Degree Burns

280
500

$           

August 13th
Enzain Aus D

etroit
45

1,000
$       

Sam
e w

eek as Arm
ada Fair and School Registration

August 20th
Juliann Ankley &

 The Rogues
60

1,200
$       

Rain until 5:00 pm
 m

oved to tent in FM
 lot W

arsaw
 Cuisine 

3,898
$         

8,750
$       

Total Attendees
1015

Total Expenses
12,648

$      
Choice O

ne Sponsorship
(500)

$           
M

ACC G
rant

(4,000)
$       

N
et Cost

8,148
$         

55



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALY BLANK 

 

 

56



   

 

 

Directors Report 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

DATE: September 9, 2024 

TO:  DDA Board Members 

FROM: Christine Malzahn, DDA Executive Director 

 

Items Attached: September Report 
 Weekly email reports 
 Market Manager report 
  
 
Action Needed: No Board Action Needed 

 

 

 

57



Director’s Report – September 2024 

Promotions/Events 
• On-going Social media postings and engagement with downtown merchants on Facebook and Instagram.
• Staff and I created ads and social media postings for upcoming concerts and farmers market with boosted

advertising.
• Updated website calendar of events and other happenings
• Hosted Third Degree Burns, Enzian aus Detroit and Julianne Ankley for weekly concerts
• Began planning for Merchant Trick or Treating and WinterFest Events

Economic Development 
• Continue to work with Code Enforcement and Police Chief on blighted downtown building

conditions.
• Assisted two new business owners with zoning and business licenses (new Vietnamese restaurant

and potential user in the old fire hall)

Place Making/Streetscape 
• Solicited storytellers for the I AM Imlay City project, and recorded 15 storytellers at MittTV Studios.
• Created 12 I AM Imlay City Banners for proofing.
• Spent 2 days in MittTV studio recording videos for the project
• Processed wayfinding sign project approvals and check deposit
• On-site meeting with DPW and Todd Mackenzie to discuss bike rack installation

Grants: 
• Processed 1 façade grant application.
• Attended meetings to make our EV Charger Station NEVI compliant for our grant
• Researched EPA Grant and held discussion meeting with Four County Foundation
• Completed MACC Concert grant required reporting

Farmers Market: 
• Staff and I cleaned and prepped the old fire hall for ongoing market season.
• Solicited vendors for the market.
• Met with contractors for fire hall maintenance

Billboard: 
• Artwork submitted for Oktober Fest Rotary Campaign.

Imlay City Façade Corp 
• Drafted letter of funding request to LDC
• Continued to work on Façade Corp application and guidelines for new applicants
• Prepared packets and meeting notices for Sept 9th meeting

Meetings and Other:  
• Attended Rotary Club weekly meetings.
• Processed invoices, check requests, and mailed payments.
• Made updates to the DDA website for current meeting information.
• Attended the Spanish language Class

58



• Attended 3 – MI Funding Hub Grant workshop sessions. 
• Attended the Lapeer County Economic Club lunch. 
• Met with Lapeer County Foundation and Lapeer DDA reps to discuss a regional Community heart and Soul 

initiative 
• Prepared meeting minutes, agendas, action item sheets, and board packets. 

59



From: Christine Malzahn
To: wbargen@icdda.com; sdavis@icdda.com; kjorgensen@icdda.com; jshattuck@icdda.com; srobbins@icdda.com;

ndocherty@icdda.com; jmontoya@icdda.com; jkempf@imlaycity.org
Cc: ddapromotions@imlaycity.org
Subject: Week Ending August 16h
Date: Friday, August 16, 2024 12:42:04 PM
Attachments: 2024.08.12 Meeting Minutes.docx

Hello Board Members,
 
Here is a quick recap of this week's activities.  Attached are the minutes from Monday’s
meeting – let me know if you note any corrections that are needed.
 
Valley Sign verified that their quote is still valid – so I have authorized them to begin updating
the art files and they will be sending a proof for review.  Addam from Red Beard Solutions will
be power washing the fire hall in the next week or two.
 
DPW Supervisor Ed and I met with Todd McKenzie about the bike rack project and installation
needs for the three units.  We hope to have them ready for installation by October, I asked
Todd to include some solar lights to illuminate the message boards as well as a
commemorative plaque, acknowledging Four County Foundation as part of the funding.
 
I sent out proofs for the eleven – I AM Imlay City banners and videos that I have completed. 
The participants seem to be very pleased with the work so far.  I have another 14 scheduled to
be in the studio next week to record their stories, so I am getting close to my goal of 30 for this
installation.
 
I attended the Lapeer DDA’s monthly luncheon, one of the ideas we discussed was to produce
a joint (Almont, Lapeer and Imlay) fun promo video for Downtown Day (September 28th).  If you
have any video ideas that you think will go viral we are looking for ideas on how to showcase
peeks of each community that entice shoppers to attend.  Jim Alt is arranging for sponsorship
of a few gift cards as giveaways if a shopper can show at least one paid receipt from each of
the towns that day.   We plan to use Petula Clark's song “Downtown” as our theme and I’ll let
you know how you can participate when we film Imlay City!
 
The concert on Tuesday had a very small crowd in attendance.  Not sure if it was due to other
activities in the area or the genre.  However, those in attendance all enjoyed the performance. 
 
Yesterday’s market was well attended, and the vendors reported higher than normal sales – so
it was a good day!  Chris even had a few new vendors.
 
I have spoken with Brian Garner, an attorney with Taylor and Butterfield.  He will be drafting a
purchase agreement based on our discussion for the 3 city-owned parcels on Third Street.  We
will, of course, review it at our September meeting if it is ready and I will post a Imlay City
Façade Corp meeting notice for the same evening.

60

mailto:ddadirector@imlaycity.org
mailto:wbargen@icdda.com
mailto:sdavis@icdda.com
mailto:kjorgensen@icdda.com
mailto:jshattuck@icdda.com
mailto:srobbins@icdda.com
mailto:ndocherty@icdda.com
mailto:jmontoya@icdda.com
mailto:jkempf@imlaycity.org
mailto:ddapromotions@imlaycity.org

1

1





IMLAY CITY

DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY



Regular Meeting 

August 12, 2024

MEETING MINUTES



A regular meeting of the Downtown Development Authority was held on Monday, August 12, 2024, at Imlay City Hall, 150 North Main Street, Imlay City MI 48444.



1. CALL TO ORDER

Chair Walt Bargen called the meeting to order at 5:35 pm



2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE



3. ROLL CALL – Director Malzahn called the roll.

Present: Kim Jorgensen, Steve Robbins, Justin Shattuck, Jessica Montoya, Mayor Joi Kempf, Walter Bargen

           Absent: Neil Docherty (excused), Stu Davis (excused)

           Quorum Present



4. CORRESPONDENCE – none



5. SPECIAL PRESENTATION – none



6. COMMITTEE REPORTS

City Services Negotiating Committee – Chair Bargen acknowledged an email communication from City Manager Horton.

338 Third Street Negotiating Committee – Director Malzahn reported that the committee met earlier in the day and recommended using the closed session agenda item later in the meeting to discuss further.



7. CONSENT AGENDA

	MOTION by Shattuck, supported by Jorgensen to approve the consent agenda items as presented including:

	Meeting agenda; Regular meeting July 8, 2024; Information Meeting July 8, 2024; Special Meeting July 22, 2024; FINANCIAL REPORTS – through July 31, 2024; DDA Expenditure Report, Check Register Report 

DDA Credit Card Statement; Balance Sheet; City Allocated Expense Report

	All in Favor 6 / Nays 0 - MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY



8. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION – none



9. UNFINISHED BUSINESS – none 



10. NEW BUSINESS



A. Shop, Dine Explore, Enjoy Street Banners

Director Malzahn presented her designs, production estimates and recommended the creation of 30 new banners to be installed in the CBD.  The banners will be created for generic uses to enhance the downtown streetscape.  The banners will be used to replace the current hometown hero display and will be displayed for a 8-week timeframe.

MOTION by Robbins, supported by Shattuck to approve the purchase of 30 trivia banners for installation along Third Street and Almont Avenue from The Print Shop in the amount of $1525.00

	Roll Call:  AYES –Robbins, Shattuck, Jorgensen, Montoya, Kempf, Bargen

	                 NAYS – none

	MOTION CARRIED 6/0



B. Fire Hall Improvements

Director Malzahn presented several estimates for interior/ exterior power washing, concrete repairs and floor coating.  The Board discussed usage of the space for the market and other events and the need for some basic maintenance.

MOTION by Robbins, supported Kempf to approve the maintenance work at 338 E. Third Street, including power washing and concrete repairs in the amount of not to exceed $6000.

	Roll Call:  AYES – Robbins, Kempf, Montoya, Shattuck, Jorgensen, Bargen

	                 NAYS – none

	MOTION CARRIED 6/0



C.  Wayfinding Sign Repairs / Replacements

The Board reviewed the original specs for the 2004 wayfinding sign project.  Discussion was had about the DDA’s responsibility to maintain that project or to remove the signs that are no longer viable.  There is an immediate need to repair the 5 directional signs that are faded and peeling along Van Dyke in MDOT ROW.  Those signs require specific materials to meet MDOT requirements.  Malzahn submitted an inventory/condition report showing the majority of pedestrian signs have started to show wear and will need to be addressed soon, the destination signs are still in general good condition.

MOTION by Jorgensen, supported by Robbins to approve the sign repairs estimate as presented by Valley Sign Company in the amount of $16,057.

	Roll Call:  AYES – Jorgensen, Robbins, Kempf, Montoya, Shattuck, Bargen

	                 NAYS – none

	MOTION CARRIED 6/0



D. Fall Décor Discussion and Budget Allocation

Director Malzahn presented several concept designs for fall décor.  She recommended that 3-4 select areas in the CBD be decorated for the season to keep costs down.  The Chamber of Commerce is paying forward their straw bales’ leftover from SummerFest, which Malzahn now has stored in the back of the fire hall.  Jorgensen recommended using White Feather Farms for mums/pumpkins etc. since they are the donors of the straw.

MOTION by Jorgensen, supported by Kempf to approve a fall decoration budget – not to exceed $2500.

	Roll Call:  AYES – Jorgensen, Kempf, Robbins, Montoya, Bargen

	                 NAYS – Shattuck

	MOTION CARRIED 5/1





11.  DIRECTORS REPORT

Malzahn presented her written report in the meeting packet for July 2024.  In addition, Malzahn gave an update on the EV Charger grant, the bike rack project, market manager report, and took updates for the board member list.



12. CLOSED SESSION  - for the purposes of property purchase consideration

MOTION by Robbins, support by Jorgensen to enter closed session at 6:08 pm	 

 All in Favor 6/ Nays 0 - MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 



RE-ENTER REGULAR SESSION AT 6:50 PM



MOTION by Shattuck, support by Robbins to proceed with negotiations between the DDA and City Manager to acquire the 3 city-owned parcels including the old fire hall, DPW and former sign shop. 

 All in Favor 6/ Nays 0 - MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 





13. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION – none



14. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS – none



15.  ADJOURNMENT

MOTION by Shattuck, supported by Robbins to adjourn the meeting at 6:58 pm

  All in Favor 6 Ayes/Nays 0 - MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 





Next Regular DDA Board meeting date: Monday, September 9, 2024, at 5:35 PM





Respectfully submitted by: _________________________________________

	                                    Christine Malzahn, DDA Executive Director

DDA APPROVED: 



CITY COMMISSION APPROVED:



DDA REGULAR SCHEDULED MEETING MINUTES – AUGUST 12, 2024

PAGE 1





From: Christine Malzahn
To: wbargen@icdda.com; srobbins@icdda.com; jshattuck@icdda.com; jmontoya@icdda.com;

kjorgensen@icdda.com; sdavis@icdda.com; jkempf@imlaycity.org; ndocherty@icdda.com
Subject: Week Ending August 30th
Date: Thursday, August 29, 2024 9:49:26 AM
Attachments: 2024.09.09 Agenda.doc

2024.09.09 Agenda.doc

Hello Board Members,
 
Here is a quick recap of what’s been happening in the office.
 
Attached are drafts of our two agendas.  We will have our regular meeting Monday Sept 9th at
5:35 per usual and then move into the Façade Corp meeting following.
 
I’ve been busy recording I AM Imlay videos at the MittTV studio.  We did 15 over a two-day
period.  That brings us to 26 so far, more on this update at our next meeting.
 
Chris Bishop and I began working on our WinterFest (December 7th) and Merchant Trick or
Treating (October 26th) events.  I’ve spoken with the Chamber several times and we have a
meeting scheduled for next Tuesday to discuss details.
 
The Concert series wrapped up last week with a decent attendance.  I am working on
submitting the reporting from our $4000 MACC grant and hope to have a detailed report for you
in either Sept or Oct.
 
The Farmer’s Market is going ok.  Sadly, we do not have as many vendors as last year.  Many
who were with us last year no longer operate their small home-based businesses.  Each week
we are averaging 7-9 vendors.
Sales are holding steady, but still down from last year's figures.
 
The power washing on the old fire hall should be completed by next week, Addam from Red
Beard revised his pricing after he and I talked further about what was a priority.  He will be
washing the inside walls, concrete floor, bay doors, cleaning the gutters, and some general
cleanup outside for $3,700.
 
The Print Shop is re-printing the Shop Dine banners for us, since the pole pockets were not
large enough to hold the rods.  They should be completed and installed by the end of next
week.
 
I’ve been meeting with Kathy Dickens from the Four County Community Foundation about
some property acquisition possibilities and blight remediation work.  Her and I are working on
an EPA grant opportunity that if approved would award us $10,000,000 for area-wide projects
including two downtown properties, the community pavilion, downtown pocket parks, Rotary
Park improvements and pool renovations.  More to follow on this topic.

61

mailto:ddadirector@imlaycity.org
mailto:wbargen@icdda.com
mailto:srobbins@icdda.com
mailto:jshattuck@icdda.com
mailto:jmontoya@icdda.com
mailto:kjorgensen@icdda.com
mailto:sdavis@icdda.com
mailto:jkempf@imlaycity.org
mailto:ndocherty@icdda.com



IMLAY CITY


DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

150 N. MAIN STREET


IMLAY CITY, MI 48444

Regular Meeting SEPTEMBER 9, 2024

5:35 P.M.

Walter Bargen, Chair
Justin Shattuck, Board Member


Neil Docherty, Vice Chair 
Steve Robbins, Board Member

Kim Jorgensen, Secretary
Jessica Montoya, Board Member

Stu Davis, Treasurer
Joi Kempf, Mayor
 


A G E N D A

1. CALL TO ORDER


2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. ROLL CALL

4. CONSENT AGENDA



AGENDA




Meeting minutes: 




          Regular meeting August 12, 2024



FINANCIAL REPORTS – through August 31, 2024

DDA Expenditure Report, Check Register Report 


DDA Credit Card Statement; Balance Sheet; City Allocated Expense Report

5. Correspondence – (none)

6. Special Presentation (as needed)

7. Committee Reports (as needed)

A. City Services Negotiating Committee 

B. 338 Third Street Negotiating 

8. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION


9. Unfinished BUSINESS: 


A. None

10. NEW BUSINESS:

A. Façade Grant Application – Mette Financial 301 E. Third Street 


B. I AM Imlay City Project Update


C. Officer Elections


11. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT

12. CLOSED SESSION – Convened For Property Acquisition

13. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

14. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS


15. ADJOURNMENT

Respectfully Submitted by: Christine Malzahn, DDA Executive Director                                                                 Posted August 27, 2024

NEXT REGULAR MEETING: October 14, 2024







IMLAY CITY


IMLAY CITY FAÇADE CORPORATION

150 N. MAIN STREET


IMLAY CITY, MI 48444

Meeting september 9, 2024

6:30 PM or

 (Immediately following the scheduled DDA Special Board Meeting at 5:35 pm)

A G E N D A

1. CALL TO ORDER

2. ROLL CALL


3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA


4. APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES July 22, 2024

5. FINANCIAL REPORT


6. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION


7. NEW BUSINESS 

a. Façade Grant Application and Guidelines

b. Lapeer Development Corp. Funding Assistance


8. CLOSED SESSION (as needed)


9. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS


10. ADJOURNMENT





 
That’s it for now - I will be out of the office tomorrow for an extra long holiday weekend, but if
you need anything just shoot be a text or call, hoping you all enjoy the last lovely days of
summer too.
 
Regards,
 
Christine Malzahn
DDA Executive Director
City of Imlay City
150 North Main Street
Imlay City, Michigan 48444
Office: 810-724-2135 ext. 1307
Email: ddadirector@imlaycity.org
 

62



Market Manager’s Report 

 

• On-going social media postings to promote market 
• Signed up a few new vendors for the Market. 
• Continued reaching out to more prospective vendors.  
• Started working on WinterFest planning and advertising. 
• Working on filling the spaces for Kringle Market. Posted on multiple social 

media pages. Response has been great. 
• Attended a class to learn Spanish. 
• Cleaned up the fire hall a bit.  
• Submitted the reports required for the Farmer’s Market Snap Program. 

  

  

 

 

 

 

63


	IMLAY CITY, MI 48444
	Regular Meeting SEPTEMBER 9, 2024
	I AM Imlay City Storytellers.pdf
	Sheet1

	ADPA4AD.tmp
	IMLAY CITY, MI 48444
	Regular Meeting SEPTEMBER 9, 2024

	City Allocated Expenses.pdf
	Sheet1

	ADPB2A.tmp
	IMLAY CITY, MI 48444
	Regular Meeting SEPTEMBER 9, 2024

	Final Report for 24MG9458 (2).pdf
	Final Report for 24MG9458
	General Information
	Organization
	Contact
	Report Details
	Project
	Participation Summary
	Financials
	Revenue and Expense Report
	Questions & Attachments
	Questions
	Attachments
	Certification


	ADP64CC.tmp
	Sheet1

	ADP6513.tmp
	IMLAY CITY, MI 48444
	Regular Meeting SEPTEMBER 9, 2024




